UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Councill

E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 14
24 June 1997

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Si xt eent h sessi on

SUMVARY RECORD OF THE PUBLI C PART*
OF THE 14th MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 7 May 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: M. ALSTON

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

Third periodic report of the Russian Federation (continued)

Initial report of Peru

*  The summary record of the closed part of the neeting appears as
docunent E/ C. 12/1997/ SR 14/ Add. 1

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97- 16544 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR 14
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTIES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (agenda item 7) (continued)

Third periodic report of the Russian Federation (E 1994/104/ Add. 8;
HRI / CORE/ 1/ Add. 52/ Rev. 1; E/C. 12/ Q@ RUS.1; E/ C. 12/ A/RUS.1) (continued)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the nenbers of the del egation of
the Russian Federation took places at the Comrittee table.

| npl enentation of articles 6 to 15 of the Covenant (continued)

2. M. VAROV (Russian Federation), replying to a question raised by

M. Texier on the right to housing, said that considerable progress had been
made in 1995-1996, in spite of econom c and financial difficulties. In 1995,
housi ng had been provided to 2 mllion people, sonme of them homel ess.

However, there were still 6.5 mllion people on the waiting |ist.

3. M. R EDEL, referring to questions 44 and 45 of the list of issues to be

taken up (E/C 12/ Q RUS. 1), asked what concrete neasures had been taken to
conbat HIV infection. He would particularly welcome further information on
the strategy adopted in that regard by the Russian Parliament, which, if the
i nternational press were to be believed, contradicted the recommendati ons of
the Worl d Heal th Organization (WHO) .

4, M. GRISSA, noting that the del egati on had not replied to question 46 of
the list of issues, asked what had been the effects of the Chernobyl disaster
and whet her any measures had been taken to obviate the risk of future nuclear
acci dents.

5. M. SA D asked to what extent the private sector was hel ping to solve
t he housi ng probl em by buil di ng af fordabl e housi ng.

6. M. CEAUSU asked the del egation for nore information on measures to
conmbat al coholism drug abuse and other social habits harnful to health. He
wi shed to know whet her those phenonena were responsible for the steep decline
inlife expectancy at birth, particularly for nmen.

7. M . ADEKUOYE asked about the psychiatric hospitals, which, at the tine

of the former Soviet Union, had been used for inproper purposes. What steps

had been taken to conbat the increase in the suicide rate? Had any proposals
been made for inproving the financial situation of the pharmaceutical sector

(E/ 1994/ 104/ Add. 8, para. 253) and, if so, with what results?

8. M. CEVILLE asked what was the Governnent's policy towards the poor
sanitary and hygi ene conditions prevailing in penal institutions, where
tubercul osis was rising nore than el sewhere and a nmaj or cause of death anong
i nmat es.



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 14

page 3
9. M. MONI SOV (Russian Federation), replying to M. Riedel, said
that there were 78 territorial centres and 5 regional centres for conbating
the AIDS epidemic. In addition, several centres provided treatnent for

HI V-i nfected persons and a network of diagnostic |aboratories had been set up
In 1996, the Governnent had extended the federal anti-AlIDS programre to the
year 2000. The programme was ainmed at sensitizing the population to nethods
of preventing HV infection and sexually transmtted di seases. Measures had
been taken to devel op new drugs, screening tests and faster diagnoses. 1In
1995, a law on prevention of H V infection had been enacted. There was no
appreci able difference between the strategy of the Duma and the Mnistry of
Heal th policy, which, on the recommendati on of WHO, was ai med at reducing the
cost of health care while Iimting H YV screening to bl ood donors and mnedi ca
personnel exposed to the risk of infection. There was no conpul sory screening
for drug addicts or honpbsexuals. However, non-nationals wi shing to obtain an
entry visa had to present a certificate proving that they had had an HV
screening test.

10. Regardi ng pol lution, the situation had inproved thanks to a reduction
in industrial em ssions of environnentally harnful products. Econom c

devel opnent pl ans nust henceforth take environmental protection into account.
A federal law on drinking water was currently being drafted. A federa
programe had al so been devel oped to inprove the quality of drinking water

t hrough the use of new technologies. In answer to M. Gissa's question

a programe had been set up to deal with the consequences of the Chernobyl

di saster. The victins were receiving nedical follow up and governnent

al l omances. The situation had inproved in the contam nated areas, which were
provided with foodstuffs fromel sewhere. 1In 1996, the Mnistry of Health had
defined new standards for radi o-nuclear security in order to protect the
popul ation fromall sources of natural and non-natural radiation. Thanks to
| egislation, the risks of future accidents had been reduced to a m ni mrum
Furthernore, the Mnistry of Nuclear Energy had prepared a series of vita
nmeasures to be inplenmented in nuclear plants.

11. As to conbating al coholismand drug addiction, the Government was
attenpting to increase the nunber of clinics to which drug addicts could turn
anonynmously for treatment. In addition, information canpai gns were being
conducted and synposi a organi zed for school teachers and university

prof essors, some of themwith the help of WHO, in order to

i nform school children and students of the risks of drug addiction and

nmet hods of AIDS prevention. Federal |egislation would also have to be
anended in order to make it conpul sory for drug addicts and al coholics to
undergo treatnent.

12. Regarding the difficulties of the pharnmaceutical industry, the
production of drugs was one of the priorities of the Mnistry of Health, and a
nati onal programre had been adopted to that end. Measures had al so been taken
to reduce the duty paid on inported nmedicines. The problemlay in the high
cost of drugs. Many people did not have the neans to buy any, and in certain
territories and regions it was frequently difficult to provide medicine free
of charge or at half price to persons entitled to that benefit, including
retirees. The Governnent was currently preparing a list of 250-280 basic
drugs whose prices should be | ow.



E/C 12/ 1997/ SR. 14
page 4

13. In reply to M. Ceville, the Governnent had recently asked the Mnistry
of Health to prepare a federal programme for conbating tuberculosis. The
programe woul d be ained at hel ping hospitals equip thensel ves and obtain

medi cine. A draft federal |aw had al so been prepared in order to provide care
to persons with tuberculosis. To inprove the situation in the prisons, the
Gover nment had devi sed new standards on the diet of detainees. The Mnistry
of the Interior had created special areas and health stations for prisoners
with tuberculosis. The Mnistry of Health was helping to i nprove the sanitary
conditions in detention centres and to provide care for patients, including
those wi th tubercul osis.

14. In reply to M. Adekuoye's question, the situation had changed radically
in psychiatric institutions, which could no | onger serve inproper objectives.
In late 1996, the Mnistry of Health had taken steps to assist those
establ i shnments, many of which faced alarmng material problens.

15. M. VAROV (Russian Federation) provided additional information on the
state of the environment. As a result of the decrease in production brought
about by the country's econonic difficulties, the situation had inproved
considerably in alnpst all parts of Russia. In the past two years, em ssions
of toxic substances had dropped considerably, although a good deal remained to
be done in that area. Measures taken to conbat air and water pollution had
greatly contributed to the inprovenent.

16. As to the housing stock and the role played by the private sector in
housi ng construction, in early 1997, nore than 50 per cent of housing units
had been owner-occupied, nore than 36 per cent of housing units had been built
by private entities, and 30 to 40 per cent of the housing stock had been built
by the State. The State had taken various steps to pronmote housing
construction. The anpbunts spent by individuals to build their own honmes

were tax-exenpt and the State provided consi derabl e assistance, with the

rei mbursenent of | oans being spread out over nore than 25 years. It was to be
hoped that, with the inproved econom c situation, the problem would soon
becone | ess serious.

17. M. SA' DI said he had hoped the representative of the State party woul d
reply more candidly to his question by stating that environmental problenms
were not a priority for a country in transition to a market econony, as was
the case of the Russian Federation. The AMOCO report denonstrated that the
authorities' concerns were far renoved fromthose problemns.

18. M. VAROV (Russian Federation) said that the question of the environnment

and its protection was very conplex, even critical, in the Russian Federation
as recogni zed in the core docunent and in the additional information that had
been provided. |In spite of everything, sone positive devel opnments were seeing

the light. The activities of oil conmpanies, anong others, had a negative
environnental inpact. The Russian Federation had recently introduced the idea
not only of admnistrative and crimnal responsibility but also of pecuniary

responsibility in that regard. 1In 1996, billions of roubles had been paid in
fines by polluting enterprises that did nothing to protect the environment.
The problem of the environnment was still, however, of a nuch greater scale

than the solutions that had been proposed.



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 14
page 5

19. He suggested grouping together the replies to questions 47 to 52 of the
list of issues and to the additional questions raised by nmenmbers of the
Committee in order to give general information on the inplenentation of the
right to education.

20. The main difficulty in that domain was one of financing, whether of
teachers' salaries, teaching materials or any other educational requirenents.
The Federation was, however, doing everything possible to find a solution. It

had al ready been able to develop its potential in that field: 34 new higher
educational establishments had been created and the nunber of public and
private educational establishnments for secondary and specialized education had
i ncreased, as had the nunber of teachers and I ength of schooling. The
Federation's statistical data showed that the situation had inproved in
relation to what it had been at the end of the Soviet era. That testified to
the efforts undertaken by the Government. |In the field of vocational and
techni cal training, however, problens renmained: the nunber of establishnments
had actually dropped. Nonetheless, efforts had recently been made not only to
stabilize the situation but even to inprove it.

21. He regretted that the Law on education had not been fully inplenmented
due to the economic difficulties of the Federation, and in particular the fact
that teachers earned about 60 per cent |ess than people in industry. As to
the situation in institutions of secondary education, 99.9 per cent of the
students finished their courses and obtained a diploma.

22. No first-hand statistical data were avail able on the connection between
the degradation of the educational systemand the increase in juvenile crineg,
but expert assessnents suggested there was no direct link. Economc factors

were nost likely to be the cause.

23. M. W MER asked what the Russian Federation was doing to avoid a brain
drain, with all its scientists being driven out of the country as a result of
its economic difficulties.

24. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO asked what inportance was given in the
educational systemto human rights.

25. M. GRISSA said he did not understand how the secondary school drop-out
rate coul d have been reduced practically to zero as long as the country's
economic difficulties continued.

26. M . ADEKUOYE asked for information on what percentage of resources had
been spent on education in 1993, 1994, 1995 and, if possible, 1996. Wre
school authorities who did not fulfil their obligations penalized? If so,

what was the nature of their punishnment? He also wi shed for further

i nformati on on the | anguage of instruction nmentioned in paragraphs 267 and 268
of the report and on the use in the Adm nistration of |anguages of different
nationalities.

27. M. RIEDEL asked if it was not the closure of the scientific and
technical institutes, anong other factors, that was driving the elite out
of the country. What steps were being taken to inprove the situation?



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 14
page 6

28. M. THAPALIA inquired what were the possibilities for the nultitude of
nationalities and ethnic groups conprising the Russian Federation to receive
education in their nother tongue. What was the salary of a teacher and of a
civil servant? Were there any wage gaps between teachers based on the

| anguage they worked in? What steps was the Governnent taking in that regard?

29. M. CEAUSU, with regard to the right of citizens to receive education in
their nother tongue, referred to in paragraph 290 of the report, asked about
the status of the various national groups. Could one or two exanpl es be
given? For instance, was prinmary education in the Tatar Republic provided

in the Russian | anguage or in the Tatar |anguage? Wat was the role of the
Public Prosecutor, referred to in paragraph 309? 1In a society based on the
rule of law, was it normal for the Public Prosecutor to supervise school s?

30. M. VAROV (Russian Federation) regretted the brain drain, which went
back to 1917 and was or had been based on political or econom c reasons or
even on fam |y reunification. The solution was obvious: social and materia
recogni tion should be given to those working in science and culture. That was
what the Federation was currently attenpting to do. An inprovenent in the
situation could be hoped for. The |evel of renuneration was currently nuch

hi gher than it had been and was approachi ng European | evels.

31. The question on the attention given to human rights in education had

al ready been answered; in the higher grades, it was an integral part of a
course on the foundations of law. As a jurist, however, he had to acknow edge
that the quality of that education still left nuch to be desired.

32. The remark about the statenment having been | acking in candour was
undoubt edl y based on a misunderstanding in the transm ssion of information
provi ded by the del egation of the Russian Federation. The econonic
difficulties to which reference had been nmade certainly existed, but the
country was not on the verge of bankruptcy. Negative reports on the

non- paynment of teachers' salaries, for exanple, should not be overestinmated.
The country was devel oping on the political, econom c and social levels; there
was no reason to paint a totally bleak picture. The statistical data provided
were reliable. The situation had stabilized in sone sectors and was i nproving
in others, that was indisputable. As to the percentage of the gross donestic
product (GDP) spent on education, the figures requested were the foll ow ng:
1989, 8.3 per cent; 1990, 14.7 per cent; 1991, 14.4 per cent;

1992, 11.4 per cent; 1993, 12 per cent; and 1994, 11.7 per cent.

33. Penal ties were indeed provided for where individuals failed to conply
with their teaching obligations. The penalties were primarily disciplinary in
nature and could extend to dismissal. Inspection units were responsible for
checking on the quality of education. |If private institutions failed in their

obligations, their Government permit could be w thdrawn.

34. As concerned the | anguages spoken in the Russian Federation, it should
be recalled that there were nore than 178 nationalities and other ethnic
groups. Obviously it was difficult to provide education in all those

| anguages. However, all the subjects of the Russian Federation, wthout
exception, received education in the | anguage of the particul ar Republic,



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR 14
page 7

whet her they were Yakuts, Adygeis, Kalnyks, Bashkirs or Tatars, to nanme but
a few That was a matter for the authorities of the Republics, who were
currently enpowered to solve such problens independently.

35. In relation to neasures taken to stop the brain drain, which constituted
a serious economc loss for the country, a decision had recently been adopted
by the President of the Federation in order to enhance the prestige of
intellectual work and solve the problem as quickly as possible.

36. He did not have any detailed statistical data on the nunber of

i nstructors teaching the | anguage of a given ethnic group, the nunber of
students follow ng such education or the salaries for such teachers. That

fell within the conmpetence of each Republic. The salaries of teachers working
i n Russian or indigenous | anguages were the sane, the only differences being
of a regional nature or depending on the type of establishment.

37. The role of the Public Prosecutor, referred to in paragraph 309, was to
ensure respect for human rights and to verify that human rights were respected
in the functioning of State bodies. Sone habits were difficult to change, but
the situation was evolving, particularly where standards were concerned, and
the nost recent |egislation defined the role of the Public Prosecutor nore
precisely.

38. The CHAI RPERSON said that the Committee had thereby concluded its
consideration of the third periodic report of the Russian Federation

The public part of the neeting was suspended at 11.45 a.m
and resuned at 12.15 p.m

Initial report of Peru (E/ 1990/5/Add. 29)

39. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the nenbers of the del egation of
Peru took places at the Committee table.

40. M. HERMOZA- MOYA (Peru) said that economic, social and cultural rights
which, like all other human rights, were inalienable and universal, were

di stingui shed by the fact that their realization could only be progressive.

He woul d not attenpt to denonstrate that Peruvians really did enjoy all the
rights under the Covenant, but rather to describe the nmeasures taken by the
CGovernment progressively to guarantee the full realization of those rights, it
bei ng understood that the respect of econonic, social and cultural rights was
closely linked to the country's | evel of econom c devel opnent.

41. Awar e that poverty was the main obstacle to the effective enjoynent of
econom c, social and cultural rights, the Peruvian CGovernnent had i mediately
attenpted to i nprove the econony followi ng the grave crisis the country had
undergone in the early 1990s. It had devised a strategy for conbating poverty
based on the generation of jobs and incone and, taking strict account of the
country's actual financial capacity, ainmed at reducing the nunber of poor
people from4.5 to 2.2 nmllion by the year 2000.

42. The inmpl ementation of that anti-poverty strategy involved severa
sectors of the Administration. The Mnistry of the Presidency had hel ped to



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 14
page 8

realize the social objectives by devoting itself particularly to nmeeting the
basi ¢ needs of the poorest segnents of the population and by a favourable
climate for private investnent. The Mnistry of Agriculture had prepared a
programme to encourage the creation of businesses in sectors where the poverty
rate was highest, with the objective of increasing the revenues and standard
of living of peasant and indi genous comunities. Gven the priority role of
the farm ng sector, the Governnment paid special attention to peasant
comunities, which were duly protected. In cooperation with the Internationa
Labour Organization (1LO, and with financial assistance fromthe

United States Agency for International Devel opnent, the Peruvian Gover nnent
had i npl enented a special programre for the protection of indigenous
conmuni ti es, which was nmandated to receive and rule on conplaints of
violations of the rights of indigenous popul ati ons.

43. As part of the anti-poverty strategy, social spending held a privileged
place in Peru's investnment plans, which had led to the creation of the

nati onal Conmpensation and Soci al Devel opment Fund (FONCODES). Originally,
FONCODES had been intended to renedy the negative inpact on the needi est
peopl e of econom c policy neasures the Governnment had been conpelled to take.
Subsequently, its m ssion had been to hel p di sadvant aged popul ations and to
contribute to reviving the country's small, mediumsized and m croenterprises.
I n August 1996, after five years of activity, the Fund had carried out

20,000 projects in nmost of the country's districts at a total cost of nore
than $750 mllion, 74 per cent of which had been financed from nationa
resources and 26 per cent through international cooperation

44, Awar e that education was an inportant factor in conbating poverty, the
Gover nment had al ways encouraged el enentary, primary and secondary educati on
whi ch were conpul sory, and had nade it a priority to eradicate illiteracy,

whi ch had now fallen to 10.5 per cent, as against 12.8 per cent in 1993. The
Government was planning to bring it down to 4 per cent by the year 2000, which
was about the global average. The education policy was al so being applied
with a viewto ensuring equality between the sexes. The recently created

M nistry for the Advancenent of Winen and Human Devel oprment was responsi bl e
for ensuring respect for wonen's rights in all areas, with the objective of
securing greater participation by wonmen in public life and inproving their
status in the fields of education and enploynent. Wnen's illiteracy rate had
fallen, and job creation programes had been inplenmented to bring down their
unenpl oyment rate, which was 11.1 per cent, as against 8 per cent for nen.

45, Si nce enpl oynent was of vital inportance in conmbating poverty, the
CGovernment accorded great inportance to vocational training. The two nodes

of training called for by the Job Pronmotion Act, nanely, vocational training
agreenents for the young and apprenticeshi ps, had enjoyed a real boomin 1996;
the former had increased threefold over 1995 and the latter had risen

40 per cent. In order to create the conditions necessary for an increase in
productive investnent, the Government had restructured the Labour |nspection
Unit by strengthening its role in advising workers and enpl oyers on their
rights and duties. The Mnistry of Labour had created a free | egal advice
unit for lowincone wrkers. In collective bargaining, the Government ensured
that | abour rel ations between enpl oyees and managenment were conducted freely,
wi thout State intervention. Mst disputes were settled directly by the soci al
partners, and the nunmber of strikes had fallen dramatically.



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 14
page 9

46. The nunber of health-care establishnents had risen over the past decade.
There were now 144 hospitals, 959 health-care centres and 4,714 health
stations, in which 4,858 doctors, 5,772 health-care professionals,

14,558 assistants, 4,208 adnministrative enpl oyees and 332 executives were
wor ki ng. Health expenditures had increased substantially in recent years,
with the rate of growh, which had been negative (-14 per cent) between 1985
and 1990, reaching 22 per cent between 1991 and 1995. Resources provided by
external cooperation had also risen, to $202 mllion

47. Worren held a central place in health policy. |Inmproving wonen's health
woul d enabl e other objectives in the health and denmpgraphic areas to be
realized, such as ensuring perinatal and infant health and curbing popul ation
grow h. The npbst inportant successes in that area were inproved vaccination
coverage of infants under one year of age - nore than 90 per cent in 1995 -
eradi cation of polionyelitis and a marked decline in the neasles rate. [Infant
nortality had fallen steadily, from 110 per thousand live births in the
period 1970-1975 to 56 per thousand in the period 1990-1995. The objective
was to bring it down to 41 per thousand by the year 2000.

48. A progranme for combating acute respiratory infections, which were the
primary cause of death anong children, had been set up with the help of the
Pan- Aneri can Health Organi zati on (PAHO and the United Nations Children's
Fund (UNICEF). The aimwas to halve nortality resulting from such infections.
The Governnent had al so succeeded in | owering the nunber of cases of

tubercul osis: in 1996, 26,664 cases had been di agnosed and treated, or

30 per cent fewer than in 1993 and 17.4 per cent fewer than in 1995. The

M nistry of Health had al so created a progranme for conbating sexually
transmtted di seases and Al DS

49. As a result of those policies and programes, |ife expectancy at birth
had been 67 years in the period 1990-1995, and was projected to reach 70 years
for the period 2000-2005 (67 years for nmen and 72 years for wonen). That
progress had earned the Peruvian Government the PAHO annual prize for the
country making the nmost progress in the field of health. However, nuch

remai ned to be done, particularly in reducing the maternal nortality rate,
disparities in health indicators between urban and rural areas, and chronic
mal nutrition | evels anong children

50. As part of its efforts to build an increasingly efficient and rationa
State, the Peruvian Governnent was devoting consi derable resources to socia
devel opnent. During the period 1997-2000, it expected to build on its
acconpl i shnents in order to achieve observance and effective enjoynment of
the rights enshrined in the International Covenant on Econonic, Social and
Cultural Rights at the earliest possible date.

The neeting rose at 1.05 p. m




